1: 33: 03

SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
May 4, 2015
1:33 p. m

PM

CALL TO

ORDER

Co-Chair
to order

VEMBERS

Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
at 1:33 p.m

PRESENT

Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or

VEMBERS

Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair (via teleconference)
Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Peter Mcciche, Vice-Chair (via teleconference)
Click Bishop

M ke Dunl eavy

Lyman Hof f man

Donny O son

ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Pat Pit

ney, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget,

O fice of the Governor; Representative SamKito;

APPROP: OPER. BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS/ AM APPRO

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE
SUMVARY
SB 1001
SB 1001
#sb1001

SENATE BILL NO. 1001

"An Act neking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain pr ogr ans, capitalizing funds, maki ng
reappropriations, nmaking capital appropriations, and
maki ng appropriations wunder art. 1X  sec. 17(c),



Constitution of the State of Al aska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for
an effective date."

1: 33: 23 PM

Co-Chair Kelly discussed housekeepi ng.

1: 34: 00 PM

PAT PITNEY, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, noted that there were others in the
gallery that could speak to specific itens. She explained
that the CS isolated mnor changes, while l|leaving HB 72
intact. The CS was isolated to the changes provided by the
adm nistration as a starting point to spur discussion and
work toward a fully funded budget.

1: 35: 44 PM

Ms. Pitney referred to page 2, section 1, which listed
speci fic program fundi ng sources:

* Section 1. The follow ng appropriation itens are for
operating expenditures from the general fund or other
funds as set out in section 2 of this Act to the
agencies naned for the purposes expressed for the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30,
2016, wunless otherwi se indicated. A departnent-w de,
agency-w de, or branch-w de unallocated reduction set
out in this section my be allocated anong the
appropriations made in this section to t hat
departnment, agency, or branch.

Ms. Pitney spoke to the reinstated education funding |ine
items on Lines 13 and 14:

Al aska Learning Network - 599, 700
Pre-Ki ndergarten Grants - 2,000, 000

Ms. Pitney continued to Lines, which reflected the
restoration of funds for Children's Services:

Front Line Social Wrkers - 1,000, 000

1: 36: 43 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



Ms. Pitney referred to Page 2, lines 21 through 27, which
showed unallocated reductions to the Departnent of Health
and Soci al Services:

Departnental Support Services 0 1,175,000 -1,175, 000
Public Affairs O

Comm ssioner's Ofice 0

Adm ni strative Support O

Servi ces

| nf ormati on Technol ogy O

Servi ces

1: 37: 05 PM

Co-Chair Kelly asked whether funding for the Frontline
Soci al Wrkers were in the governor's original budget.

Ms. Pitney replied no.

Co-Chair Kelly asked whether Famly Preservation funding
had been in the original budget.

Ms. Pitney replied yes.

1: 37: 35 PM

Senator Dunl eavy wondered how the adm nistration expected
the CS woul d succeed in being fully funded.

Ms. Pitney hoped that the CS would be a starting point for
a conversation that would result in the conprom se
necessary to garner a three-fourths vote needed to get to a
fully funded budget.

1: 38: 28 PM

Co-Chair Kelly noted that the CS was not fully funded
ei t her.

Ms. Pitney agreed.

Co-Chair Kelly declared that the senate had passed a fully
funded budget with HB 72.

1: 38: 38 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



Senat or Dunl eavy asserted that the senate had passed a
fully funded budget. He said he did not understand how SB
1001 was fully funded.

Ms. Pitney reiterated that the budget would only be fully
funded if a conprom se were struck between the mnority and
the majority that resulted in a majority vote. She restated
that SB 1001 was intended to inspire further conversation
that lead to a conpromse. She said that although the
senate passed the budget, the legislation now sitting on
t he governor's desk was only two-fifths funded.

1: 39: 59 PM

Ms. Pitney continued to speak to Page 2, lines 21 through
27, which restored unallocated adm nistrative reductions in
the Support Services area of the Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services. She said that the reductions had been fund
source changes from general fund to inter-agency receipts,
but would be restored back to general funds because the
inter-agency receipts would be wunrecoverable. She added
that the Agency-w de unallocated reduction of travel and
support on Line 29, would al so be restored.

1: 40: 58 PM

Ms. Pitney referred to Page 3, line 6 of the previous,
unfunded budget. She relayed that $9 nmillion of a $14
mllion dollar request had been included for efforts on

North Slope Gas Commercialization; the CS reflected the
remai nder of the original request fromthe governor at $4.9
mllion.

Ms. Pitney continued to Line 9, which listed the proposed
requests for the Departnment of Public Safety:

Al aska State Troopers 500, 000 500, 000
Al aska Wl dlife Troopers - 500, 000

Aircraft Section

Council on Donestic Violence and 1, 500, 000 1, 500, 000
Sexual Assault

Council on Domestic

Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault - 1,500, 000

Ms. Pitney spoke to the prioritization of prevention funds

by the previous and current admnistrations for the Counci
on Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA). She shared

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



that the program had been funded at $3 mllion in FY 15.
She said that the admnistration felt that the prevention
efforts in the areas of donestic violence and sexual
assault were significantly inmportant in the state. She
reiterated that the bill was neant to be a tool to generate
di scussion that would result in a fully-funded budget.

1:42: 39 PM

Co-Chair Kelly asked how nuch had already been allocated
for the CDVSA.

Ms. Pitney said approximately $16 mllion, 80 percent of
whi ch was for operating shelters.

1:42: 57 PM

Senator Hoffman understood that the dollars would be
transferred fromthe Governor's Ofice to the Departnent of
Public Safety as one-tine funds and would be elimnated in
FY17.

Ms. Pitney replied that the funding had been changed to
one-time funding on the house side, and cut altogether by
the senate. She stated that the $1.5 mllion would be used
for prevention efforts.

Senator Hoffrman interjected that the <council had $16
mllion in its budget.

Ms. Pitney clarified that the current $16 mllion of
avai |l abl e fundi ng was not prevention funds.

1:44: 44 PM

Ms. Pitney spoke to the Al aska Marine H ghway System (AVHS)
itemon page 3, |ine 22:

Mari ne Vessel Operations - 7,000,000

Ms. Pitney explained that AVHS had been sharply reduced in
the previous budgets; the CS would restore all of the
al ready published schedules for summer 2015, and nmaintain
some wi nter schedules. She noted that sonme wi nter schedul es
woul d be inpacted even with the restoration of the funds.

1:45: 31 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



Ms. Pitney noved to Line 27:

Budget Reductions/ Additions - 7,000, 000
- Systemni de

Ms. Pitney related that the restoration would renove the
need to elimnate approxinmately 70 positions at the
Uni versity of Al aska.

1: 45: 57 PM

Senator Bishop asked whether a breakdown of the 70
positions could be provided.

Ms. Pitney replied that 40 percent of the positions would
be from the University of Alaska Fairbanks (UAF); 30
percent at the University Al aska Anchorage (UAA); 7 percent
at the University of Al aska Southeast (UAS); 17 percent at
the statewide office. She stated that UAF, UAA, and UAS
would see a 50 to 60 percent of faculty and a 50 to 60
percent staff reduction. The statewide office only had
staff positions. She shared that each university branch was
preparing a priority list of prograns and services that
woul d be reduced.

1:47:14 PM

Co-Chair Kelly asked how much of the allocation was in
anticipation of salary increases.

Ms. Pitney explained that the $7 million was separate from
the sal ary increases.

1:47: 32 PM

Senator Bishop stated that he had witten a letter to the
UAA Board of Regents with cost savings suggestions and had
yet to receive a response. He hoped that the board would
respond so that positions could be saved.

1: 48: 09 PM

Senator Dunleavy asked M. Pitney to repeat what the
reductions would be at each university branch.

Ms. Pitney replied that current percentage distributions of
the reduction of the $30 million in general fund was: 41.9

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



percent at UAF;, 33.4 percent at UAA, 7.2 percent at UAS;
17.5 percent in the Statewide Adm nistration Ofice. She
furthered that the statewde off had been given a
proportionally larger share of the unrestricted funds to
mnimze the inpact on canpuses and academ c prograns.

Senat or Dunl eavy queried the total nunber of positions that
could be | ost.

Ms. Pitney replied up to 70.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked how many of the positions would be
t eachi ng positions.

Ms. Pitney responded that the current estimate was 50 to 60
percent teaching positions.

Senat or Dunl eavy understood that the increase would fund
positions that were filled by real people; there would be
no enpty PCN s.

Ms. Pitney said that the funds would save 70, currently
filled, positions.

1: 50: 40 PM
AT EASE

1:55: 25 PM
RECONVENED

Ms. Pitney referred to page 3, line 32, which listed the
restoration of the cost of living (COLA) increases for
enpl oyees under |abor contracts. She explained that the
intent was to allow the admnistration to honor existing
| abor contracts and to perform "good faith" negotiations
with unions, while understanding that non-union enployees
woul d not receive the COLA increase. She said that there
were three contracts, representing half of the state's
uni on enpl oyees, currently under negotiation. She relayed
that the intent was not to treat enployees unequally, but
to honor the labor contracts in the sane way the state
woul d honor its contracts with any other third-party.

1: 57: 03 PM

Co-Chair Kelly asked why the non-union COLA increases had
been renoved.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



Ms. Pitney replied that the increases for partially-exenpt
and exenpt enployees were not under legal contract; the
state was not legally bound by contract to pay those
i ncreases.

1:57: 54 PM

Co-Chair Kelly wunderstood that negotiations would happen
again with the three biggest unions in 2017.

Ms. Pitney confirnmed that negotiations would be happening
for 2017, the state would be asking to reopen contracts for
2016.

Co-Chair Kelly asked why keeping the funds for non-union
enpl oyees had not been consi dered.

Ms. Pitney stated that the determ nation had been based on
the state's fiscal climate and the interest of honoring the
| egal contract.

1: 58: 52 PM
AT EASE

2:08: 53 PM
RECONVENED

Ms. Pat Pitney referred back to the question of funding for
| abor contracts versus funding for non-union statew de
enpl oyees. She noted that the crux of the issue was the
honoring of the legal contracts, while understanding the
current fiscal constraints. She stated that the contracts
had been negotiated in good faith; the adm nistration would
ask for reopeners in 2016, and certainly the fiscal crisis
woul d be consi dered during negotiations for FY17.

2:10: 04 PM

Co-Chair Kelly stated the legislature not funding the
i ncreases constituted a reopener. He opined that rejecting
the | anguage was not equal to not honoring the contracts
it would just reopen the negotiations. He added that he
still did not understand why the non-union contracts had
been renoved.

Ms. Pitney stated that the COLA funding for only union
enpl oyees nade the nost fiscal sense.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



2:11:53 PM

Ms. Pitney referred to Section 2, pages 4 through 11, which
listed the funding sources associated with Section 1. She
continued to Section 4, page 12, which |isted the nunbers
associated with Medicaid expansion. She pointed out that
the Departnment of Corrections (DOC) would see a savings of
$4,108,200 as a result of Medicaid expansion. She relayed
that the Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
was expected to see a savings of $1,558,700 in Behaviora
Heal th and $1,000,000 in Catastrophic and Chronic |l ness
Assi stance. Line 22 listed the acceptance of $145, 438, 400
in federal funds for the expansion.

2:13:32 PM

Ms. Pitney pointed out to the commttee that Section 5,
page 13, listed the previous nunbers by fund source.

2:13:52 PM

Ms. Pitney turned to Page 15, section 7, which appropriated
$118, 000,000 from the in-state gas pipeline fund to the
publ i ¢ educati on fund.

2:15:43 PM

Senator Hoffman asked what the additional funding did to
i ncrease the base student allocation (BSA).

Ms. Pitney replied that she did not have the figure.

Co-Chair Kelly interjected that the bill would bring the
BSA t o $58. 80.

2:16: 21 PM

Vice-Chair M cciche understood the bill was intended to

created conversation that would lead to the three-quarter
vote needed to fully fund the budget. He contended that the
appropriations in the bill were the desires of the
governor. He thought that the politics of saving a few
progranms would not be the answer to working toward a three-
quarter vote.

Ms. Pitney reiterated that the itenms in the CS were
reflective of the governor's priorities, and that the bil

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



was meant to reopen the conversation in order to negotiate
a wat to a fully-funded budget.

2:18:14 PM

Vice-Chair M cciche wondered whether the governor realized
that the appropriation process was the responsibility of
the |egislature. He asked whether the governor could ever
support the previously passed budget bill.

Ms. Pitney responded that if a fully funded budget had cone
to the Governor's desk, he would have supported the
authority of the legislature to pass a budget. She related
that the problem was that HB 72 had not been fully funded,
and there was no nechanism in place to nove forward wth
t hat piece of |egislation.

Vice-Chair Mcciche stated that the cuts that had been nade
to HB 72 had been painful for everyone. He wondered whet her
the admnistration recognized the difficulty of the job
that the |egislature had done.

Ms. Pitney stated that the adnministration and the governor
were well aware of the state's fiscal situation. she
asserted that the governor's original budget had proposed
an approximately $700 mllion reduction, SB 1001 only
changed the spending plan proposed in HB 72 by 1.4 percent,
and the governor would have accepted HB 72 had it been
fully funded. She related that revenue nmeasures woul d need
to be further di scussed in t he future because,
realistically, oil prices wuld not be rebounding to a
| evel that woul d bal ance the budget.

2:21: 55 PM

Senat or Hof fman asked how |l arge of a cut the adm nistration
anticipated in 2017.

Ms. Pitney remnded the commttee that when the governor
took office her had requested that all comm ssioners
provide 5 and 8 percent reduction scenarios, which had been
the basis for the initial budget submtted for FY16. She
said that departnents had been asked to project what their
agencies would look like after a 25 percent reduction in
budget. She stated that talks concerning efficiencies
across all agencies were still underway. She noted that
Conference Committee reductions relative to managenent plan

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



for several agencies exceeded 25 percent. She anticipated
that cuts for FY17 would be nore difficult.

2:26:18 PM

Senator Hoffrman understood that 8 percent was nost |ikely
unachi evable. He surmised that the admnistration was
looking to submt a further reduced budget to the
| egislature in the future.

Ms. Pitney replied that that was the goal.

2:26:44 PM
AT EASE

2:27: 30 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Kelly expressed that the unexpected spending
proposed in SB 1001 would be difficult to explain. He spoke
of the $118 nmillion in education funding, which was one-
time noney. He thought that it was the governor's goal to
not have any cuts to education, but replacing the $118
mllion - plus increases - would be challenging. He spoke
of all of the cuts that the commttee had nmade to the
budget already and warned that crafting a bal ance budget in
FY17 was going to be even nore of a chall enge.

2:30: 57 PM

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
2:31: 29 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 2:31 p.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 05/04/15 1:33 P. M



